
  
 

Jeff Hughes 
Head of Democratic and Legal 

Support Services 
 

 
This agenda has been printed using 100% recycled paper 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

MEETING : STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

VENUE : ROOM 27, WALLFIELDS, HERTFORD 

DATE : TUESDAY 16 AUGUST 2011 

TIME : 7.00 PM 
 
 
MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE 
 
District Council Members: 
 
Councillors A Burlton, M Carver, N Poulton and M Wood 
 
Town Councils Representative: 
 
Mrs E Woods 
 
Parish Councils Representatives: 
 
Mr J Jones 
Mr C Marks 
 
Independent Members: 
 
Mr S Bouette 
Mr D Farrell 
Mr J Morphew 
Mr T Vickers 
 
 

CONTACT OFFICER: Jeff Hughes 
Tel: 01279-502170 

E-mail: jeff.hughes@eastherts.gov.uk 

 

Public Document Pack



 

PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS 
 
1. A Member with a personal interest in any business of the Council who 

attends a meeting of the Authority at which the business is considered 
must, with certain specified exemptions (see section 5 below), disclose 
to that meeting the existence and nature of that interest prior to the 
commencement of it being considered or when the interest becomes 
apparent. 

 
2. Members should decide whether or not they have a personal interest in 

any matter under discussion at a meeting.  If a Member decides they 
have a personal interest then they must also consider whether that 
personal interest is also prejudicial. 

 
3. A personal interest is either an interest, as prescribed, that you must 

register under relevant regulations or it is an interest that is not 
registrable but where the well-being or financial position of you, 
members of your family, or people with whom you have a close 
association, is likely to be affected by the business of the Council more 
than it would affect the majority of inhabitants of the ward(s) affected 
by the decision. 

 
4. Members with personal interests, having declared the nature of that 

personal interest, can remain in the meeting, speak and vote on the 
matter unless the personal interest is also a prejudicial interest. 

 
5. An exemption to declaring a personal interest applies when the interest 

arises solely from a Member’s membership of or position of general 
control or management on: 

 

• any other body to which they have been appointed or 
nominated by the authority 

• any other body exercising functions of a public nature 
(e.g another local authority) 

  
 In these exceptional cases, provided a Member does not have a 

prejudicial interest, they only need to declare their interest if they 
speak.  If a Member does not want to speak to the meeting, they may 
still vote on the matter without making a declaration. 



 

6. A personal interest will also be a prejudicial interest in a matter if all of 
the following conditions are met: 

 

• the matter does not fall within one of the exempt categories of 
decisions 

• the matter affects your financial interests or relates to a 
licensing or regulatory matter 

• a member of the public, who knows the relevant facts, would 
reasonably think your personal interest is so significant that it is 
likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest. 

 
7. Exempt categories of decisions are: 
 

• setting council tax 

• any ceremonial honour given to Members 

• an allowance, payment or indemnity for Members 

• statutory sick pay 

• school meals or school transport and travelling expenses: if you 
are a parent or guardian of a child in full-time education or you 
are a parent governor, unless it relates particularly to the school 
your child attends 

• housing; if you hold a tenancy or lease with the Council, as long 
as the matter does not relate to your particular tenancy or 
lease. 

 
8. If you have a prejudicial interest in a matter being discussed at a 

meeting, you must declare that interest and its nature as soon as the 
interest becomes apparent to you. 

 
9. If you have declared a personal and prejudicial interest, you must 

leave the room, unless members of the public are allowed to make 
representations, give evidence or answer questions about the matter, 
by statutory right or otherwise.  If that is the case, you can also attend 
the meeting for that purpose.  However, you must immediately leave 
the room once you have finished or when the meeting decides that you 
have finished (if that is earlier).  You cannot remain in the public gallery 
to observe proceedings. 

 



 

 
AGENDA 
 

1. Election of Chairman  
 

 To elect a Chairman for 2011-12.  
 

2. Apologies  
 

 To receive apologies for absence.  
 

3. Chairman's Announcements  
 

4. Minutes (Pages 5 - 10) 
 

 To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 8 September 2010.  
 

5. Declarations of Interest  
 

6. Localism Bill (Pages 11 - 16) 
 

7. Draft 2010/11 Annual Governance Statement (Pages 17 - 40) 
 

8. Work Programme 2011/12 (Pages 41 - 44) 
 

9. Urgent Business  
 

 To consider such other business as, in the opinion of the Chairman of the 
meeting, is of sufficient urgency to warrant consideration and is not likely to 
involve the disclosure of exempt information. 
  
 

 



S  S 
 
 

 
 

  MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE 
STANDARDS COMMITTEE HELD IN THE 
COUNCIL CHAMBER, WALLFIELDS, 
HERTFORD ON WEDNESDAY 8 
SEPTEMBER 2010, AT 7.00 PM 

   
 PRESENT:  
   
 District Council Members: 
   
  Councillors R L Parker, P A Ruffles and 

M Wood 
 

 Parish Councils’ Representatives: 
 

  Mr J Jones 
 

 Independent Members: 
 

  Mr S Bouette 
Mr D Farrell 
Mr T Vickers 
 

 ALSO PRESENT:  
 

 Councillors M R Alexander, D Andrews, W Ashley, S A Bull, 
D Clark, N P Clark, A P Jackson, G E Lawrence, S Rutland-
Barsby, M J Tindale and B M Wrangles 

   
 OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE: 
 
  Simon Drinkwater - Director of 

Neighbourhood 
Services 

  Jeff Hughes - Head of 
Democratic and 
Legal Support 
Services 

  Prabhjit Sobti - Investigator 
 
 

Agenda Item 4

Page 5



S  S 
 
 

 
 

242   APOLOGIES  
 

 

 Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillor 
J Warren, Mr C Marks and Mrs E Woods. 
 

 

 RESOLVED ITEMS 
 

 

243   ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN FOR THE MEETING  
 

 

 In the absence of the Committee Chairman, Members elected 
Mr T Vickers to chair the meeting. 
 
 RESOLVED – that Mr T Vickers be elected Chairman 

for this meeting of the Standards Committee. 
 

 

244   MINUTES  
 

 

 RESOLVED – that the Minutes of the meeting held on 2 
August 2010 be confirmed as a correct record and 
signed by the Chairman. 

 

 

245   EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 

 

 The Committee considered whether or not to exclude the 
press and public from the meeting during the discussion of the 
item of business detailed at Minute 246 below on the grounds 
that it involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in paragraph 7c of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government Act 1972.  The Committee agreed that this 
item should be considered in public. 
 
The Committee also agreed that the report and accompanying 
papers on the complaint, as now submitted, did not contain 
any exempt information or personal data and should therefore 
be made available for public inspection. 
 

RESOLVED – that (A) the matter detailed in Minute 246 
below be considered in public, and 
 
(B) as the report and accompanying papers on the 
complaint, as now submitted, do not contain any exempt 

 

Page 6



S  S 
 
 

 
 

information or personal data they be made available for 
public inspection. 
 

246   COMPLAINT IN RESPECT OF A COUNCILLOR, 
REFERENCE EHDC/01/2010         
 

 

 The Chairman confirmed the meeting was quorate.   
 
The Committee noted the procedure to be followed in 
determining the matter detailed below. 
 
The Monitoring Officer submitted a report in respect of a 
complaint (and the elements thereof) concerning District 
Councillor M Tindale. 
 
The Committee recalled that, at its meeting held on 2 August 
2010, it had agreed that the Investigating Officer’s findings on 
the complaint should be considered at a hearing conducted 
under Regulation 18 of The Standards Committee (England) 
Regulations 2008. 
 
The Committee noted that it was required to consider the 
Investigating Officer’s report and make one of the following 
findings: 
 
(A)  that the Member had not failed to comply with the 

Council’s Code of Conduct; 
 
(B)  that the Member had failed to comply with the 

Council’s Code of Conduct but that no action needed 
to be taken in respect of the matters considered at 
the hearing; 

 
(C)  that the Member had failed to comply with the 

Council’s Code of Conduct and that a sanction 
should be imposed. 

 
The subject Member, District Councillor M Tindale, confirmed 
that he did not disagree with any findings of fact detailed 
within the Investigator’s report. 
 

 

Page 7



S  S 
 
 

 
 

The Chairman drew the Committee’s attention to the 
submission submitted by the complainant on the Investigator’s 
report. 
 
The Investigator presented his report and summarised his 
findings in respect of each element of the complaint. 
 
The Committee asked questions of both the Investigator and 
subject Member and also the complainant (who had been 
invited by the Committee to attend the meeting as a possible 
witness). 
 
Each Committee Member, at the invitation of the Chairman, 
confirmed that he/she was satisfied that they had sufficient 
information to enable them to determine whether or not the 
subject Member had failed to comply with the Code of 
Conduct. 
 
The Committee retired to consider its determination.  On its 
return, the Chairman announced that the instances of conduct 
variously alleged by the complainant had been proven by the 
findings of fact stated in the Investigator's report and not 
challenged by the subject Member.  The Chairman stated that 
the Committee had made no further findings of fact.  It was 
the Committee’s view, contrary to that of the Investigator, that 
the series of occurrences complained of constituted a pattern.  
However, the Committee had concluded the occurrences did 
not amount, cumulatively or individually, to any breach or 
breaches of the Code of Conduct.  The Committee’s 
judgment, again contrary to that of the Investigator, was that 
the majority of the elements of the complaint, whilst 
helping define the pattern, related to occurrences so long ago 
that no useful purpose would now be served by further 
action even had the conduct in question amounted to a 
breach or breaches at the time. 
 
The Chairman further advised that the Committee was not 
questioning that the public interest was served by subjecting 
Council activities to scrutiny.  The present case suggested to 
the Committee that there was a need to ensure that such 
scrutiny was exercised in ways that yielded value for money 

Page 8



S  S 
 
 

 
 

for the council taxpayer.  The Committee had therefore 
agreed to request the Monitoring Officer to consider 
formulating a protocol that would guide councillors to that end. 
 
 RESOLVED – that (A) District Councillor M Tindale has 

not failed to comply with the Council’s Code of Conduct; 
and 

 
 (B) the Monitoring Officer be requested to consider 

formulating a protocol to ensure that scrutiny activity as 
now detailed was exercised in ways that yielded value 
for money for the council taxpayer. 

 
 
The meeting closed at 9.40 pm 
 

 
Chairman ............................................................ 
 
Date  ............................................................ 
 

 
 
 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



EAST HERTS COUNCIL 
 
STANDARDS COMMITTEE – 16 AUGUST 2011 
  
REPORT BY THE MONITORING OFFICER 
 
THE LOCALISM BILL 
 
WARD(S) AFFECTED:  ALL  
 

   _____________________________ 

 

Purpose/Summary of Report 
 

• To consider the changes to the standards regime contained in 
the Localism Bill. 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  that: 

 

(A) the Committee makes the following recommendation& 
 

 

 

1.0 Background 
 

1.1 The Localism Bill will place a new duty on the Council to 
 promote and maintain high standards of conduct among elected 
 and co-opted Members of the authority, but remove the present 
 means of discharging this duty by abolishing the General 
 Principles, the Model Code of Conduct, Standards for England  
 and local authority Standards Committees. In its place will be a 
 new statutory Register of Members’ Interests, with criminal 
 penalties for failure to comply. 
 
1.2 Some authorities may decide to do nothing other than 
 implement the new statutory interests regime. However, high 
 standards of conduct go beyond mere compliance with a 
 statutory interests regime. The Bill includes a duty to promote 
 and maintain high standards of conduct.  It would be difficult for 

Agenda Item 6

Page 11



 an authority to claim to promote and maintain high standards of 
 conduct unless it had set out what standards it expected of its 
 Members. 
 
2.0 Report 
 
3.0 Non-statutory Code of Conduct 

 
3.1 One option would be to expand the Member/Officer Protocol 

and the related documents covering planning decisions, use of 
Council IT equipment and gifts and hospitality. 

3.2 An alternative is for the Council to adopt its own code. If the 
authority is considering adopting its own code, one option 
would be simply to re-adopt the general conduct rules in 
paragraphs 3-7 of the Model Code, as these are the parts 
which will not be replaced by the statutory interest’s regime. 

 If this non-statutory Code were applied to conduct as a 
 Councillor only, it would avoid the complications of trying to 
 apply the Code to conduct in private life. 
         It would cover situations if Members were to bully, breach 
 confidentiality, misuse their positions for personal advantage, 
 fail to treat people with respect, cause the authority to 
 discriminate unlawfully, intimidate or victimise witnesses, bring 
 their offices as Members or their authorities into disrepute, 
 misuse Council resources or ignore statutory officers’ advice.  
 
3.2 Such a non-statutory Code could be supplemented by the 
 existing guidance to Members on danger areas such as use of 
 IT and the internet, planning and lobbying, Member/officer 
 relations and gifts and hospitality. These documents could be 
 updated as necessary. 
 
3.3 However, the Localism Bill provides that, where a local 
 authority does adopt a non-statutory Code of Conduct, it must 
 then respond to any written complaints that a Member or co-
 opted member has failed to comply with that Code by 
 considering whether the matter should be investigated and, if 
 satisfied by the investigation that a Member or co-opted 
 member has failed to comply, decide what action if any to take. 
 The review subcommittee would no longer exist. The Bill gives 

Page 12



 considerable freedom to delegate more of the process, to 
 enable speedier investigation and resolution of simple matters. 
 
4.0 Investigation of complaints 

 
4.1 It is possible to do all of this between the Monitoring Officer and 
 full Council. But full Council is not an appropriate forum for 
 detailed examination of an investigation report so it would be 
 more convenient to set up a Committee to advise them on how 
 best to discharge the new duty and to undertake casework on 
 complaints. The Bill removes the rigid bureaucratic process for 
 handling of complaints, so that this Committee could allow the 
 Monitoring Officer to seek local resolution and determine that a 
 complaint need go no further if, for example, the complainant is 
 satisfied with the Member’s response.  
 
4.2 To speed the process, the Committee might say that the 
 consent of the Chairman would be required for a decision not to 
 investigate a complaint, but that the Monitoring Officer could 
 take the decision to initiate an investigation. The Monitoring 
 Officer’s investigation report might then go to the Committee for 
 examination, and to give the Member an opportunity to 
 respond. 
 
5.0 Independent members 

 
5.1 That raises the issue of whether such a committee can include 
 co-opted independent members. Section 102(3) of the Local 
 Government Act 1972 enables the co-option of non-councillors 
 onto the committee, but section 13 of the Local Government      
 and Housing Act 1989 prevents them from having a vote on the 
 committee unless it is purely advisory. So, at present, it would 
 be necessary for the Committee to recommend any matter on 
 to Council for decision, if the co-opted independent members 
 are to have a vote. This may be positively advantageous on 
 individual complaints, as full Council would have ownership of 
 the matter, could remove the errant member from outside 
 bodies and, with the approval of the Member’s Group Leader, 
 remove the Member from Committees. 
 

Page 13



6.0 Ability to deal with Member misconduct 
 

6.1 Councillors conduct can seriously disrupt the ability of an 
 authority to discharge its functions effectively. They can 
 discredit the authority with the public. Repeated leaking of 
 confidential information deters citizens from confiding in the 
 authority. They can drive out good officers and deter good 
 candidates from seeking election to the Council. Breaches of 
 the general conduct rules are rarely visible to the electorate and 
 are rarely resolved through the ballot box, and an authority may 
 need to limit the damage which an errant Member can wreak 
 before the next election. 
 
6.2 Without the statutory sanctions of suspension, an authority’s 
 ability to deal with serious Member misconduct will be strictly 
 circumscribed. It can name and shame. Full Council can 
 remove Members from committees. Where there is a failure to 
 register interests, it can seek to persuade the Police to take an 
 interest. 
 
Background Papers:  
Localism Bill 
 
Contact Member:  Councillor Anthony Jackson 

 Leader of the Council 
 
Contact Officer:            Simon Drinkwater 
    Director of Neighbourhood Services - Ext  
    1405 

 
Report Authors:  Simon Drinkwater 
    Director of Neighbourhood Services - Ext  
    1405 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 14



ESSENTIAL REFERENCE PAPER ‘A’ 
 

Contribution to 
the Council’s 
Corporate 
Priorities/ 
Objectives: 

Fit for purpose, services fit for you 
Deliver customer focused services by maintaining and 
developing a well managed and publicly accountable 
organisation. 
 
 

Consultation: None 

Legal: Contained in the report 

Financial: some costs may arise in respect of any new 
administration arrangements. 

Human 
Resource: 

None 

Risk 
Management: 

The Council needs to ensure it has adequate processes 
and procedures to ensure there is a high standard of 
governance and ethics. 

 

 
 
 

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



 

  

EAST HERTS COUNCIL 
 
STANDARDS COMMITTEE – 16

 
AUGUST 2011 

  
REPORT BY THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL 
 

 DRAFT 2010/11 ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 
 

 
WARD(S) AFFECTED:  ALL  
 

 

Purpose/Summary of Report 

 

• This report presents the draft 2010/11 Annual Governance 

Statement at Essential Reference Paper ‘B’.  The Audit 
Committee meeting on 12 July 2011 and the Human Resources 
Committee on 13 July 2011 considered the statement and it is 
submitted to this Committee as part of the wider consultation 
process. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  that in relation to the draft 2010/11 Annual 

Governance Statement, either 

 

(A) the following comments be submitted to Audit Committee:  

 

or 

(B) Audit Committee be advised that this Committee has no 

comments on the content of the document. 

 
1.0 Background 
 
1.1 The Annual Governance Statement is necessary to meet the 

requirements set out in the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 as 
amended by the Accounts and Audit (Amendment) (England) 
Regulations 2006. 

 
2.0 Report 
 
2.1 Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in 

accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public 
money is safeguarded, properly accounted for, used economically, 
efficiently and effectively.  

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 17



 

  

2.2 Council should undertake regular, at least annual, reviews of its 
governance arrangements by means of an Annual Governance 
Statement, to ensure continuing compliance with best practice. It is 
important that such reviews are reported both within the Council, to 
the Audit Committee and externally with the published accounts, to 
provide assurance that: 

 

• governance arrangements are adequate and operating effectively 
in practice, or 

 

• where reviews of the governance arrangements have revealed 
gaps, action is planned that will ensure effective governance in 
the future. 

 
2.3 The process of preparing the governance statement should itself 

add value to the corporate governance and internal controls 
framework of the Council. 

 
2.4 A governance statement should include the following information: 
 

• an acknowledgement of responsibility for ensuring there is a 
sound system of governance (incorporating the system of internal 
control); 

 

• an indication of the level of assurance that the systems and 
processes that comprise the Council’s governance arrangements 
can provide; 

 

• a brief description of the key elements of the governance 
framework, including reference to group activities where those 
activities are significant; 

 

• a brief description of the process that had been applied in 
maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the governance 
arrangements, including some comment on the role of: 
- the Council 
- the Executive 
- the Audit Committee/ overview and scrutiny function/ Standards 
  Committee  
- Internal Audit 
- other explicit review/ assurance mechanisms, and 
 

• an outline of the actions taken, or proposed, to deal with 
significant governance issues. 

Page 18



 

  

 
2.5 It is important to recognise that the governance statement covers all 

significant corporate systems, processes and controls, spanning the 
whole range of the Council’s activities, including in particular those 
designed to ensure that: 

 

• the authority’s policies are implemented in practice; 
 

• high quality services are delivered efficiently and effectively; 
 

• the authority’s values and ethical standards are met; 
 

• laws and regulations are complied with; 
 

• required processes are adhered to; 
 

• financial statements and other published performance information 
are accurate and reliable; 

 

• human, financial, environmental and other resources are 
managed efficiently and effectively. 

 
3.0 Implications/Consultations 
 
3.1 Appropriate Consultations have taken place with senior Council 

Officers. Members of the Executive and Committee Chairmen have 
also been given the opportunity to contribute to the process. The 
intention is to consult with Members of the Audit Committee, the 
Corporate Business Scrutiny Committee, the Human Resources 
Committee, Corporate Management Team, Standards Committee 
and the Executive before bringing back a final Annual Governance 
Statement to Audit Committee on 21 September 2011. The External 
Auditor has also been consulted. Information on corporate issues 
and consultation associated with this report can be found within 

Essential Reference Paper ‘A’. 
 

Page 19



 

  

Background Papers:  
 
Draft Annual Governance Statement 2010/11- Audit Committee 12 July 2011. 
 
 
Contact Member: Councillor Anthony Jackson 

Leader of the Council 
 
Contact Officer: Anne Freimanis 

Chief Executive - Ext 1403 
 

Report Authors: Alan Madin 
   Director of Internal Services - Ext 1406 
 

Simon Drinkwater 
   Director of Neighbourhood Services - Ext 1405 
 

Chris Gibson 
Internal Audit and Business Improvement Manager - 
Ext 2073 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 20



 

  

ESSENTIAL REFERENCE PAPER ‘A’ 
 

Contribution to 
the Council’s 
Corporate 
Priorities/ 
Objectives: 

Fit for purpose, services fit for you 
Deliver customer focused services by maintaining and 
developing a well managed and publicly accountable 
organisation. 
 
 

Consultation: No public or partner consultations were required during 
the preparation of this report. 
 

Legal: There are no additional legal implications to those 
already contained in this report. 
 

Financial: There are no additional financial implications to those 
already contained in this report. 
 

Human 
Resource: 

There are no additional human resource implications to 
those already contained in this report. 
 

Risk 
Management: 

There are no additional risk management implications to 
those already contained in this report. 

 

 

Page 21



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank



ESSENTIAL REFERENCE PAPER ‘B’ 

 

DRAFT ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2010/11 AND 

ACTION PLAN 2011/12 
 

Scope of responsibility  
 
East Hertfordshire District Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is 
conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is 
safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and 
effectively. The Council also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make 
arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are 
exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.  
 
In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is responsible for putting in place 
proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective exercise of 
its functions, including arrangements for the management of risk.  
 
The Council has approved and adopted a local code of corporate governance, which is 
consistent with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework ‘Delivering Good 
Governance in Local Government’ (CIPFA 2007).  
 
This statement explains how the Council has complied with the code and also how it 
meets the requirements of regulation 4(2) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 
as amended by the Accounts and Audit (Amendment) (England) Regulations 2006 in 
relation to the publication of a statement on internal control.  
 
Further copies of this statement are available on the Council’s website 
www.eastherts.gov.uk/, alternatively paper copies can be obtained from:   
 
East Hertfordshire District Council  
Director of Internal Services 
Wallfields 
Pegs Lane, 
Hertford 
SG13 8EQ 

 
The purpose of the governance framework  
 
The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, and culture and 
values, by which the Council is directed and controlled and by which it accounts to, 
engages with and leads the community. It enables the Council to monitor the 
achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have 
led to the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services.  
 
The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to 
manage risk to a reasonable level.  Controls cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve 
policies, aims and objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable and not 
absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an 
ongoing process designed to identify risks to the achievement of the council’s policies, 

Page 23



aims and objectives. It evaluates the likelihood of those risks being realised and the 
impact should they be realised, and it prioritises and manages them efficiently, 
effectively and economically. 
 
The governance framework described below has been in place at the Council for the 
year ended 31 March 2011 and up to the date of approval of the statement of accounts.  
 

The Governance Framework  
 
The Council’s governance framework derives from the six core principles identified by 
the Independent Commission on Good Governance in Public Services – a commission 
set up by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA), and the 
Office for Public Management. The Commission used work done by, amongst others, 
Cadbury (1992), Nolan (1995) and CIPFA/SOLACE (2001). These principles were 
adapted for application to local authorities and published by CIPFA in 2007.  
 
The six core principles are:  
 
a. focusing on the purpose of the Council and on outcomes for the community and 

creating and implementing a vision for the local area;  
b. Members and officers working together to achieve a common purpose with clearly 

defined functions and roles;  
c. promoting values for the Council and demonstrating the values of good governance 

through upholding high standards of conduct and behaviour;  
d. taking informed and transparent decisions which are subject to effective scrutiny and 

managing risk;  
e. developing the capacity and capability of Members and officers to be effective; and  
f. engaging with local people and other stakeholders to ensure robust public 

accountability.  
 
The key elements of East Herts Council’s application of each of these core principles are 
as follows:  
 
a) Focusing on the purpose of the Council and on outcomes for the community 
and creating and implementing a vision for the local area  
 
The Sustainable Community Strategy outlines the vision, aims and priority themes for 
the district. It was produced in conjunction with the East Hertfordshire Local Strategic 
Partnership, which brings together all relevant stakeholders, including those that deliver 
services in the area.  
 
The Council’s aims and objectives are set out in the annually updated Corporate 
Strategic Plan. This contains five priorities (which are currently under review), plus 
related aims and objectives. The Corporate Strategic Plan sets out what the Council 
expects to deliver over the next four years and, in many cases, beyond this timeframe. 
The details of how the Council will get there are incorporated in the individual service 
plans. The Plan will be updated each year to include new service developments and to 
remove actions once they are completed. The Plan sets the direction for the financial 
planning of the Council based on the Council’s priorities. 
 

Page 24



The Executive receives the Medium Term Financial Strategy covering a four-year period, 
which is used to set initial parameters for the coming budget process to ensure that 
spending proposals are affordable and sustainable over the medium term.  
 
The diagram below sets out the various links in the process of establishing and 
subsequently monitoring the achievement of the Council’s ambitions. It shows the links 
between the Sustainable Community Strategy and Corporate Strategic Plan which then 
feed into, and are informed by, service plans, service targets and individual employees 
via specific areas of responsibility allocated to them. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Council has an effective performance management framework using a dedicated IT 
system to record and report performance. The system is driven by the Service Plans 
which focus on activities that will deliver the Council’s ambitions and priorities. This is 
cascaded through individual employee appraisals. 
 
This process monitors how the Council is meeting its targets and triggers corrective 
actions where targets are proving challenging. 
 
The Council’s Executive and its Scrutiny Committees monitor and scrutinise progress 
against targets and performance in priority areas affecting relevant service areas, and 
consider and approve corrective action where necessary. For ease of interpretation 
performance graphs are reported.  There are reports which include the results of 
monthly and quarterly budget monitoring reports covering the revenue expenditure, 
capital projects, key performance indicators and absence monitoring.  
 
The monitoring process has enabled the Council to concentrate on areas which require 
particular attention. 
 
The Council is therefore able to monitor all key measures on a monthly basis and 
respond quickly and effectively to changes at an early stage. 
 
The Council maintains an objective and professional relationship with external auditors 
and statutory inspectors, as evidenced by the Annual Audit Letter.  
 
Through reviews by external auditors, external agencies, Internal Audit, and internal 
review teams, the Council constantly seeks ways of securing continuous improvement in 

 
 

Sustainable Community Strategy 
 
 
 
 

Corporate Strategic Plan 
 

Service Plans 
 
 
 

Targets 
 
 

Outcomes 
 
 

Page 25



the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources. The Council has regularly reviewed 
Financial Regulations and has adopted new Procurement Regulations from November 
2010 to ensure proper arrangements are in place for procurement of goods and 
services.  
 
All budget cost centres are allocated to a named post holder, who is responsible for 
controlling spend against those budgets, and who is also responsible for maximising the 
benefits from assets used in the provision of their service.   
 
b) Members and officers working together to achieve a common purpose with 
clearly defined functions and roles  
 
The Council has adopted a constitution which sets out how the Council operates, how 
decisions are made and the procedures which are followed to ensure these are efficient, 
transparent and accountable to local people.  
 
As required by the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007, East 
Hertfordshire District Council drew up proposals for new arrangements for the discharge 
of its executive functions, to take effect immediately after the Council elections in May 
2011. 
 
These proposals followed public consultation by the Council on the two broad options for 
new executive arrangements allowed by the 2007 Act (Leader and Cabinet Executive; 
and Mayor and Cabinet Executive).   
 
The Council adopted the Leader and Cabinet Executive model. The main features are: 
 
� The Council’s Executive consists of a Leader and between two and nine other 

Councillors. 
� The Leader is elected by full Council (initially at its annual meeting in May 2011) and 

will hold office until his term as Councillor has expired. 
� The other Executive Members will be appointed by the Leader who will decide their 

portfolios and also which executive functions will be discharged by full Executive, any 
of its Committees or any individual Executive Member or officers. 

� There are currently five Councillors on the Executive. 
 
The Council’s Corporate Management Team (CMT) consisting of the Chief Executive, 
Directors and the Head of People and Organisational Services meets on a fortnightly 
basis to develop policy issues commensurate with the Council’s aims, objectives and 
priorities. CMT also considers internal control issues, including risk management, 
performance management, compliances, efficiency and value for money, and financial 
management. Members of CMT meet with Portfolio Holders on a monthly basis to review 
progress in achieving the Council’s ambitions, priorities for action, budget monitoring, 
performance management and forward planning for major issues. CMT has a corporate 
responsibility for the messages that the Council produces, both internally and externally. 
 
Below CMT the management structure is well defined. The chart below indicates how 
decisions are implemented and cascaded: 

Page 26



Council/Executive 

Objectives/Priorities 

Strategies    Policies    Development 

Strategic Advice 
 

Executive/Portfolio Holders 
 
                                               CMT 

DMT 

SMG CWGs Service Teams 

Legend 
 

CMT Corporate Management Team 
DMT Divisional Management Team 
SMG Senior Management Group 
CWG Corporate Working Groups 
HOST Heads of Service Team 
 SCR  Scrutiny Committees 
AUD   Audit Committee 
 

Corporate Priorities 
Policies 

Service Plans 

Service Standards 

Decision making and 
Information flow 

s
h

a
r
e

 &
 i

n
fo

r
m

 

HOST 

C
a

s
c

a
d

e
/i
n

fo
r
m

&
 

tr
a

n
s

la
te

 

s
h

a
r
e

 &
 i

n
fo

r
m

 

s
h

a
r
e

 &
 i

n
fo

r
m

 

cascades & informs 
management decisions 

 

Review and Challenge 
 (SCR & AUD) 

 

P
age 27



 
 
The Senior Management structure review  is currently underway in order to implement 
the cost savings agreed within the Medium Term Financial Plan. The reduction in 
management capacity will require senior management to undertake more operational 
responsibilities. There will be a reduction in capacity of more senior officers to respond to 
enquiries. Focus will be on key activities. 
 
The Council has adopted a number of codes and protocols that will govern both Member 
and officer activities. These are:  
 

• Members’ Code of Conduct  

• Officers’ Code of Conduct  

• Members’ Planning Code of Good Practice  

• Member/Officer Relations Protocol 
 
c) Promoting values for the Council and demonstrating the values of good 
governance through upholding high standards of conduct and behaviour  
 
It is the function of the Monitoring Officer to ensure compliance with established policies, 
procedures, laws and regulations. After consulting the Chief Executive and Section 151 
Officer he will report to the full Council if he considers that any proposal, decision or 
omission would give rise to unlawfulness or maladministration. Such a report will have 
the effect of stopping the proposal or decision being implemented until the report has 
been considered.  
 
Under Section 5 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 it is the duty of the 
Council’s Monitoring Officer to report to Council if it appears that the Authority, a 
Committee or Officer of the Authority has made a decision which is contrary to law. 
There were no reports made during 2010/11.  

The Council has responsibility for responding to Freedom of Information Requests (FOI) 
promptly and within 20 working days. It has not always been possible to respond to all 
requests within this timescale. 

The Council has taken action to improve its speed of response to FOIs. An important 
element of that plan is to shift the Council from waiting for FOI requests to proactively 
reducing the need for individuals to request information by making a wider range of 
information more easily available through the Council’s website. This will include 
designing improvements to the website front page and more clearly signposting 
enquirers to the most used information. An action plan to better facilitate easy access to 
information and the management of freedom of information has been agreed. 

The Council recognises that expenses of politicians have come under serious scrutiny. 
The current Members Allowances scheme is published in the Constitution. A new 
Independent Remuneration Panel was established and its recommendations for 
Members Allowances in 2011/12 were considered by Council in February 2011. The 
review of 2012/13 allowances by the Panel will commence in Autumn 2011. 

All Council services are delivered by trained and experienced people. All posts have a 
detailed post profile and person specification. Training needs are identified through the 
Personal Development Review Scheme and addressed via the Human Resources 
service and/or individual services as appropriate.  

Page 28



 
The Council achieved re-accreditation for a further three years from April 2009 under the 
Investors in People Standard, which is a quality framework to ensure that the Council’s 
employees have the right knowledge, skills and motivation to work effectively.  
 
The financial management of the Council is conducted in accordance with the 
Constitution and with Financial Regulations. The Director of Internal Services is the 
statutory Chief Finance Officer in accordance with Section 151 of the Local Government 
Act 1972.  
 
The Council has a Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment 
Strategy in place. Investments are made in accordance with the Council’s approved 
policy. All investment transactions and transfers undertaken in house are supported by 
appropriate documentation and are properly authorised. External fund managers are 
subject to strict regulation by the FSA. The Portfolio holder and the Leader of the Council 
receive regular updates from the Director of Internal Services. The Chairman of the Audit 
Committee and Chairman of Corporate Business Scrutiny Committee are invited to 
participate in review meetings with Fund Managers. 
 
The Council maintains an Internal Audit section, which operates to the standards set out 
in the CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government in the United 
Kingdom 2006. An Anti-Fraud and Anti-Corruption Strategy and a Disclosure 
(Whistleblowing) Code are in place. A Whistleblowing hotline and email facility operates 
and has been well publicised. All staff received Annual Declaration Letters with their 
February 2011 payslips. The Council has adopted a policy on Bribery during the last 
year. The Council does not tolerate bribery committed by Council employees or its 
contractors or partners and will take consistent and swift action against those persons 
committing bribery. 
 
Individual services have produced Service Plans that  are updated each year so that 
services know what they are required to do to achieve the Council’s priorities and 
ambitions.  
 
At individual employee level the Council has established a Personal Development 
Review Scheme so as to jointly agree individual employee objectives and identify 
training and development needs. The Scheme provides for a mid-year review as well as 
an annual appraisal at which past performance is reviewed. 
 
d)Taking informed and transparent decisions which are subject to effective 
scrutiny and managing risk. 
 
The Council has several committees which carry out regulatory or scrutiny functions. 
These are:  
 

• Overview and Scrutiny committees (Corporate Business Scrutiny, Community 
Scrutiny and Environment Scrutiny) review and/or scrutinise decisions made or 
actions taken in connection with the discharge of any of the Council’s functions, 
developing the capacity and capability of members and officers to be effective.  

• Audit Committee provides assurance about the adequacy of internal controls, 
financial accounting and reporting arrangements, and that effective risk management 

Page 29



is in place. Its work is intended to enhance public trust in the corporate and financial 
governance of the council;  

• Development Control Committee determines planning applications and related 
matters;  

• Licensing Committee monitors and reviews the effectiveness of the Council’s 
licensing policy and procedures;  

• The Human Resources Committee’s functions relate to all aspects of the Council’s 
role as an employer. This includes the monitoring and strategic overview of Human 
Resources activities. 

• Standards Committee promotes, monitors and enforces probity and high ethical 
standards amongst the Council’s Members, and this extends to having the same 
responsibility for all town and parish councils within the District;  

 
The Council has data protection polices and a data sharing protocol in place to ensure 
that personal data is maintained securely and used correctly. 
 
The Risk Management Strategy defines risk management, explains the benefits of a 
strategic approach, outlines how it will be implemented, identifies roles and 
responsibilities and formalises the process. The Strategy sets out the links between risk 
management, emergency planning and business continuity. It recognises that risk 
management is a key part of the management of projects and partnerships. 
 
The Strategy highlights how risk management supports strategic planning, financial 
planning, policy making and review and performance management. 
 
The Corporate Management Team is responsible for ensuring that the key risks on the 
strategic risk register are managed. Strategic and service risk registers are reviewed on 
a quarterly basis. Risks will be amended so that they reflect the current situation, 
obsolete risks deleted and new risks added. This will ensure that the risk register and the 
resulting risk mitigation measures are appropriate for corporate objectives and services. 
 
Risk management reporting arrangements are included which describe the roles and 
responsibilities of Members and officers. Members have received risk management 
training. 
 
A new Strategic Risk Register was developed with assistance from Zurich Management 
Services Ltd. New operational risks have also been developed. The Council also has a 
Partnership Protocol in place.  
 
The Council is one of four partners in the Stevenage CCTV Partnership. The structure of 
the partnership is being reviewed. This review will include the governance arrangements. 
 
e) Developing the capacity and capability of Members and officers to be effective 
 
The Council plans and provides training for members in carrying out their roles 
effectively including their responsibilities for governance, challenge, scrutiny and review. 
 
 
During 2010/11 Councillors attended the following scrutiny related events: 

• Implications of New Government 

Page 30



• Data Quality 

• Covalent training (Performance Management software) 

• Questioning for Scrutiny 

• CfPS Parliamentary Seminars 

• Assessing the Quality of Evidence 

• Big Society Learning Network meetings delivered by Local Government Information 
Unit. 

• Programme and Project Management 

• Information Governance 

• Pension Assets and Liabilities 

• Anti-Fraud arrangements and fraud awareness 

• Risk Management 

• Commuted Sums. 
 
The Members’ Corporate Training Plan for 2011/12 provides training in the following 
areas relating to scrutiny: 

• Development Control Committee training. 

• IT Training 

• Covalent Training 

• Web pages and Web casting 

• Effective Scrutiny 

• Chairing Meetings 

• Licensing Training 

• Council Budgets 

• Procurement/ Health and Safety/ Shared Services 
 
Various other training initiatives are also in the process of development to be delivered 
to future Scrutiny and Audit Committees. 
 
The Council has an infrastructure in place to support members’ needs in respect of ICT 
requirements and the Council’s Democratic Services team provide advice and 
assistance. 
 
Protocols have been adopted to ensure clarity of the respective roles of officers and 
members.  
 
The Council’s recruitment process is designed to ensure only well qualified applicants 
are employed and the subsequent induction process is robust so that employees are 
effective. The Performance Development Review process ensures individual 
contributions are effective in meeting corporate priorities and capability issues addressed 
by training.  Internal communications methods and processes are reviewed to ensure 
staff remain well informed and their feed back is responded to. A biennial staff survey 
leads to action plans to improve effectiveness.  
 
The Council reviews its organisation and capacity as part of its annual service planning 
to ensure its staffing is commensurate in both quantitative and qualitative terms with its 
business plans. The Council is committed to taking forward the shared services agenda 
which will ensure more effective use of scarce skills by sharing across boundaries. A 
Shared Internal Audit Service across Hertfordshire came into operation from June 2011 

Page 31



and approval has been given to have a shared service for Revenues and Benefits with 
Stevenage Borough Council. Sharing ICT, HR, Exchequer and Facilities Management 
services with North Hertfordshire and Stevenage Councils is under active consideration. 
 
The Council’s HR People Strategy seeks to ensure its pay and terms and conditions are 
adequate to attract and retain sufficient staff and to encourage staff to invest in their own 
development.   
 
The Council seeks to maintain effective industrial relations to enable a high standard of 
service to the public to be maintained. Staff are fully consulted on proposed changes to 
terms and conditions. The Council engages with the trade union and staff to manage 
issues arising from pay settlements and changes to the organisation including the Local 
Joint Panel and the Human Resources Committee.   
 
Extensive use is made of the Intra net to provide staff with ready access to learning 
material and best practice via a series of tool kits.   
 
f) Engaging with local people and other stakeholders to ensure robust public 
accountability.  
 
The Council encourages all members of the local communities to contribute to, and 
participate in, the work of the Council. The Council achieves this through various 
resident polls, Community Voice and budget consultation exercises, to ensure that what 
it is doing meets the needs of its residents. The National Place Survey which was 
previously introduced to replace the Best Value Performance Indicator (BVPI) survey is 
no longer taking place. Community Voice will not continue in its current format. 
Engagement events around specific issues will be considered where they provide a 
proportionate and cost effective model for engagement. 
 
The Council carried out a Residents’ Survey in 2009 and Corporate Business Scrutiny 
Committee were presented the results on 17 November 2009, along with an action plan 
which incorporated the actions coming out of the 2008 Place Survey findings. Overall, 
both survey results recorded improvements for example: 
 

• Satisfaction with the local area has risen from 82% in the 2006/07 BVPI Survey to 
89.5 % in the Place Survey, demonstrating that the Council in partnership with other 
agencies is focusing and delivering on the concerns of local residents.  

• Three out of five residents (61%) are generally satisfied with how the Council is 
running East Herts according to 2009 Residents Survey. This level of satisfaction is 
broadly reflected in the results from previous resident surveys. 

• The percentage of residents that feel that the Council provides good value for money 
was relatively balanced between positive and negative in 2009 (53% and 48% 
respectively) and was a significantly more positive result than in 2006/07 when only 
45% responded in the positive to this statement and 56% responded negatively.  

• Similarly an increasing proportion of residents, responded positively to the statement 
that the Council is efficient and well run: 63% in 2009 Residents Survey and 61% in 
2006/07. 

 
The action plan is a monitoring tool to help the Council and its partners continue to 
improve. Corporate Business Scrutiny Committee monitors the action plan on an annual 

Page 32



basis. The final monitoring against this action plan was presented to Corporate Business 
Scrutiny on 31 May 2011.  
 
The next Residents Survey is due to be undertaken in autumn 2011. The results of this 
survey will be used to form the basis of the next action plan. 

 
Alongside the surveys, the Council consults residents and local businesses through 
specific focus group consultation seeking to ensure representation from the wider 
community on the forthcoming budget proposals. For 2011/12 this took place between 
October and November 2010 and focused on issues such as community grants, public 
toilets, homelessness help, Police Community Support Officers (PCSOs), engagement 
and consultation and supporting businesses. Alongside focus group consultation an 
online budget simulator was made available for the first time in order to engage more of 
the East Herts population. 
 
As a result of this consultation, it was agreed that the Council would:  

• continue to support PCSOs for another year whilst we hold a community safety 
review 

• reduce the consultation budget by £14,000 

• reduce but not remove the rent deposit support for people moving into the rental 
market 

• continue to support businesses, subsidising where necessary whilst ensuring where 
possible that businesses are self funding. 

 
The Council also consults with its staff, the most recent Staff Survey being undertaken in 
December 2008. The Staff Survey has now become triennial and therefore the next 
survey is due in 2011. 
 
The Council’s Community Voice meetings engaged with the public. Information from 
these meetings has been used to shape the future development of our vision including 
future investment and service provision. As part of this process, any impact on 
governance arrangements has been identified and responded to appropriately. 
Community Voice will not continue in its current format but Engagement events around 
specific issues will be considered. 
 
Individual members are active in their localities and with local groups and serve on a 
number of external bodies.  
 
The Hertfordshire County LSP and the East Herts District LSP are forums for active 
engagement with wider stakeholders and a mutual holding to account in delivering the 
Community Plans.  The Chairman of the Health Engagement Panel (a standing panel 
under Community Scrutiny Committee) has a seat on the Hertfordshire Health Scrutiny 
Committee. 
 
The Council publishes an Annual Report setting out progress on its priorities in the prior 
year. An Annual Report on Overview and Scrutiny is also published every year. 
 
There is a strategic approach to consultation to ensure the information returned is 
reliable – the Council has adopted a Consultation Toolkit setting out best practice. 
 

Page 33



The Council’s web site is under constant review to ensure it is of a good standard and 
that information is easily accessed. A consultation section has been introduced so 
members of the public can easily access open consultations and information on closed 
consultations.   
 
The Council manages freedom of information requests effectively to ensure 
transparency including the corporate governance arrangements. Information is made 
available on the website to reduce the need for requests. 

 
Review of Effectiveness  
 
Each year, the Council reviews its governance framework including the system of 
internal control. The process to be adopted for a review is detailed below:  
 

• All Directors, Heads of Service, Members of the Executive and Chairmen of 
Committees given the opportunity to make contributions.  

• Production of a draft Annual Governance Statement.  

• Consideration by the Audit Committee. 

• Consideration by the Human Resources Committee. 

• Consideration by the Corporate Business Scrutiny Committee. 

• Consideration by Corporate Management Team 

• Consideration by the Executive 

• Approval by the Audit Committee.  

• Approval by full Council. 
 
The next paragraphs give more detail regarding the actual review process, and actions 
undertaken during 2010/11.  
 
The review of effectiveness is informed by the work of the Directors within the Council 
who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the governance 
environment, the reports by the Internal Audit and Business Improvement Manager and 
also by comments made by the Council’s External Auditors and other review agencies 
and inspectorates.  
 
The process that has been applied in maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the 
governance framework includes:  
 
The Monitoring Officer has a duty to monitor and review the operation of the Constitution 
to ensure its aims and principles are given full effect. The Council reviews the 
Constitution regularly to incorporate any necessary changes.  
 
The Council has three overview and scrutiny committees. The committees can establish 
‘task and finish’ groups, which can look at particular issues in depth, taking evidence 
from internal and external sources, before making recommendations to their ‘parent’  
Scrutiny Committee and on to the Executive. Four Members can “call-in” a decision 
which has been made by the Executive but not yet implemented, to enable it to consider 
whether the decision is appropriate. In addition the Corporate Business Scrutiny 
Committee can exercise its scrutiny role in respect of Executive functions, Scrutiny 
Committees will conduct regular performance monitoring of all services, with particular 
attention to areas identified as under-performing.  

Page 34



 
The Standards Committee 
 

• In July 2008 the Standards Committee approved processes for local assessment of 
complaints to be processed. These processes have been updated. 

• Assessment Sub-Committees considered eight complaints in 2010/11. No breaches 
of the Code were identified. 

  
The Localism Bill 
 
In the Localism Bill, the Government will abolish the Standards Board regime. Instead, it 
will become a criminal offence for Councillors to deliberately withhold or misrepresent a 
personal interest. A local regime will be identified by the authority. 

 
Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA) 2000: 
 
The Council complies with the RIPA. The number of directed surveillance authorisations 
granted since April 2010 was ten of which: 

• Eight authorisations were for fly-tipping.  

• One authorisation was for anti-social criminal behaviour. 

• One authorisation was for fly-posting. 
 
The Audit Committee  
 
Seven Councillors sit on the Audit Committee. The Committee’s terms of reference are 
detailed below: 
 
Audit Activity 
1. To consider the Internal Audit and Business Improvement Manager’s annual report 

and opinion, and a summary of internal audit activity (actual and proposed) and the 
level of assurance it can give over the Council’s corporate governance 
arrangements. 

 
2. To consider summaries of specific Internal Audit reports as requested. 
 
3. To consider reports dealing with the management and performance of the providers 

of Internal Audit services. 
 
4. To consider a report from Internal Audit on agreed recommendations not 

implemented within a reasonable timescale. 
 
5. To consider the External Auditor’s annual letter, relevant reports and the report to 

those charged with governance. 
 
6. To consider specific reports as agreed with the External Auditor. 
 
7. To comment on the scope and depth of external audit work and to ensure it gives 

value for money. 
 

Page 35



8. To liaise with the Audit Commission over the appointment of the Council’s External 
Auditor. 

 
9. To commission work from internal and external audit. 
 
Regulatory Framework 
10. To maintain an overview of the Council’s Constitution in respect of rules of procedure 

relating to contracts, financial regulations and financial procedures and codes of 
conduct and behaviour. 

 
11. To review any issue referred to it by the Chief Executive or a Director or any Council 

body. 
 
12. To monitor the effective development and operation of risk management and 

corporate governance in the Council. 
 
13. To monitor Council policies on “Confidential Reporting” and the anti-fraud and anti-

corruption strategy and the Council’s complaints process. 
 
14. To oversee the production of the Authority’s Annual Governance Statement and to 

recommend its adoption. 
 
15. To consider the Council’s arrangements for corporate governance and agreeing 

necessary actions to ensure compliance with best practice. 
 
16. To consider the Council’s compliance with its own and other published standards 

and controls. 
 
17. To review arrangements for delivering value for money. 
 
18. To review the Council’s finances including borrowing, loans, debts investments and 

banking arrangements. 
  
Accounts  
� To approve the annual statement of accounts.  Specifically to consider whether 

appropriate accounting policies have been followed and whether there are concerns 
arising from the financial statements or from the audit that need to be brought to the 
attention of the Council. 

 
� To consider the External Auditors’ report to those charged with governance on 

issues arising from the audit of the accounts. 
 
The Audit Committee’s work programme and the minutes of its meetings are public 
documents and are published on the Council’s web site.  
 
Internal Audit is responsible for monitoring the quality and effectiveness of systems of 
internal control. A risk model is used to formulate a 3-year plan, from which the annual 
workload is identified. The reporting process for Internal Audit requires a report of each 
audit to be submitted to the relevant chief officer and service manager. The report 
includes recommendations for improvements that are included within an action plan (and 
graded as high, medium or low risk). This requires agreement or rejection by relevant 

Page 36



chief officer and/or service manager. The process includes follow-up reviews of 
recommendations to ensure that they are acted upon, usually within six months. All 
Internal Audit reports include an opinion on the quality and effectiveness of internal 
control within the Council’s systems, and an assessment in accordance with 
quantification and classification of internal control level definitions.  
  

Substantial 
assurance  

All required controls are in place and functioning correctly, performance 
indicators are good and no errors were detected during the period of 
review.  

Good 
assurance  

All major controls are in place, some minor controls may be absent or 
have faltered, performance indicators are good and no errors were 
detected during the period of review.  

Adequate 
assurance  

Major controls are in place, some minor controls may be absent or 
have faltered, performance indicators suggest no problems and no 
significant errors were detected during the period of review. 

Limited 
assurance  

Major controls have failed or are absent and/or major errors have been 
detected during the period of review. 

 
Direction of travel statements in respect of any change of audit opinion since the 
previous review are also contained within all audit reports.  
 
All Internal Audit reports are circulated to members of the Audit Committee and the 
progress reports on the work of Internal Audit address issues arising from these ratings. 
The Internal Audit and Business Improvement Manager has a direct reporting line to the 
Director of Internal Services.  
 
The Internal Audit and Business Improvement Manager’s 2010/11 Annual Report has 
confirmed that the overall level of assurance awarded for systems reviewed is “good”. 
This represents an unchanged direction of travel. During 2010/11 the Internal Audit team 
assigned substantial assurance to eight areas, good assurance to twelve areas, 
adequate assurance to three areas and a limited assurance to IT Procurement. 

 
The Internal Audit service is subject to regular inspection by the Council’s External 
Auditors who place reliance on the work carried out by the section. External Audit have 
recently concluded that “the Internal Audit service continues to provide an independent 
and satisfactory service to the Council and that we can take assurance from their work in 
contributing to an effective internal control environment at the Council”. Their review of 
files confirmed that “no issues were identified with internal audit’s work and these (files) 
were produced to a high standard”  
 
The Hertfordshire Shared Internal Audit Service has taken on responsibility for delivery of 
the Internal Audit Plan from 1 June 2011.  The Shared Internal Audit Service (SIAS) will 
also deliver a service to Hertfordshire County Council, Hertsmere Borough Council, North 
Hertfordshire District Council, Stevenage Borough Council and Welwyn Hatfield Borough 
Council. The three main drivers for this partnership are seen as providing greater resilience, 
higher levels of performance and greater efficiencies.  
 

Page 37



The SIAS will in future give one of five levels of assurance: Full, Substantial, Moderate, 
Limited or No Assurance. 
 
For performance management, a traffic light monitoring and reporting system is in place. 
Performance data is reported to the Scrutiny committees on a frequent basis, with 
corrective action plans put in place for any under-performing areas.  
 
In January 2010 the Audit Committee received a report from the External Auditor on the 
Council’s arrangements for audit and scrutiny. The report concluded that the Council had 
developed the scrutiny function since 2007 and that the Audit Committee had improved 
its effectiveness. The level of scrutiny at East Herts is considered similar to other 
councils audited by the External Auditor and “the commitment to scrutiny is strong and 
well supported by officers”. Arising from this report an Action Plan was agreed and six 
monthly progress reports were presented to Audit Committee during the period 
November 2009 to November 2010. This action plan is now deemed to have been 
completed.  An evaluation of the scrutiny of C3W is scheduled for Corporate Business 
Scrutiny Committee to consider in November 2011.  
 
External Audit identified audit risks in their Audit Plan 2010/11 as Accounting under 
IFRS, Financial performance pressures, revaluation of fixed assets and the C3W project. 
They have not identified any new risk areas in their Accounts Audit Approach 
Memorandum in June 2011.  
 
The most significant areas where the self assessment has highlighted further 
development is needed are set out below. Given the previously highlighted situation of 
constrained resources, focus has been placed on identifying only significant 
weaknesses. 
 
The Council’s Corporate Management Team has reviewed and approved this Annual 
Governance Statement.  
 
Significant governance issues  
 
The following required enhancements to internal control arrangements were identified 
during 2010/11 as a result of the review of arrangements and by the work of external 
and internal audit:  
 
 
Required enhancements to internal control arrangements:  
 
 

Milestone Resp. Off.  Target 
Date 

Actions needed to achieve 
milestone 

Status 

Risk that Shared 
Services 
programmes fail 
to deliver 
required levels of 
efficiency 
 

Alan Madin March 
2012 

• Strategic Business cases to be 
delivered in respect of services 
in scope. 

AMBER 

Page 38



Risk of failure to 
deliver an 
effective, 
efficient and 
economic IT 
service 

Alan Madin March 
2011 
Revised to 
March 
2012 

• IT Strategy in place.  

• All outstanding high risk IT 
audit recommendations 
implemented.  

• Resilient IT business continuity 
arrangements in place.  

• IT Procurement undertaken in 
line with Procurement 
Regulations. 

 

AMBER 

The actions 
arising from the 
review by the 
External Auditor 
of C3W need to 
be completed 
and embedded. 
 

Neil Sloper 
 

Nov. 
2011 

• Completion of C3W Project 
Plan,  

• Completion of Scrutiny 
Committee evaluation of C3W. 

 

AMBER 

Risk of failure to 
introduce flexible 
working 
arrangements will 
limit the 
opportunity to 
make cost 
savings, 
opportunities to 
work with other 
partners and 
adversely affect 
staff retention. 
 

Neil Sloper March 
2011 

• Completion of Business 
Process Improvement 
process.  

 

AMBER 

To implement 
health and safety 
risk assessments. 
 

Chris 
Gibson 

March 
2011 
Revised to 
Sept 2011 

• All risk assessments 
completed and published on 
the Intranet.  

• Regular reporting of 
compliance arrangements in 
place. 

 

AMBER 

Hertford Theatre 
future 
governance 
arrangements 

George 
Robertson 

June 2013 • Options to be developed to 
consider financial and other 
risks during a period of 
transition. 

 

AMBER 

CCTV 
governance 
issues 
 
 

Simon 
Drinkwater 

Sept 2011 • New governance 
arrangements in operation. 

 

AMBER 

Page 39



Refuse Contract- 
to ensure that 
new contract is 
embedded. 
 

George 
Robertson 

May 2012 • New contract arrangements 
seen to be working well in 
report to Scrutiny Committee 
after twelve months.  

 

AMBER 

Ability to 
maximise 
efficiencies 
making use of the 
Web 

Neil Sloper March 
2012 

• Put in place monitoring 
arrangements to review value 
for money of publishing 
information and to ensure it 
meets customer needs.  

 

AMBER 

 
 
We propose to address the above matters to further enhance our governance 
arrangements. We are satisfied that these steps will address the need for improvements 
that were identified in our review of effectiveness and will monitor their implementation 
and operation as part of our next annual review.  
 
 
 
Certification by the Leader of the Council and the Chief Executive  
 
 
Name Position Date Signature 
 
 
 
Councillor A P Jackson 
 

 
 
 
Leader 
 

  
 

 
 
Anne Freimanis 
 

 
 
Chief Executive 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Page 40



EAST HERTS COUNCIL 
 
STANDARDS COMMITTEE – 16 AUGUST 2011 
  
REPORT BY THE MONITORING OFFICER 
 
WORK PROGRAMME 2011/12 
 
WARD(S) AFFECTED:  ALL 
 

   _____________________________ 

 

Purpose/Summary of Report 
 

• This report is intended to support the Committee in planning its 
work programme. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  that: 

 

(A) the work programme as now submitted be reviewed and 
agreed. 
 

 

 

1.0 Background 
 

1.1 Items for the work programmes are set out in Essential 
 Reference Paper ‘B’. 
 
2.0 Report 
 
2.1 Members are asked to consider what items should be 
 considered by the Committee. The programme would cover the 
 period to 31st March 2012. 
 
3.0 Implications   
 
3.1 Information on any corporate issues and consultation 
 associated with this report can be found within Essential 
 Reference Paper ‘A’ 

Agenda Item 8

Page 41



Background Papers:  
None 
 
Contact Officer:            Simon Drinkwater 
    Director of Neighbourhood Services - Ext  
    1405 

 
Report Author:  Simon Drinkwater 
    Director of Neighbourhood Services - Ext  
    1405 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 42



ESSENTIAL REFERENCE PAPER ‘A’ 
 

Contribution to 
the Council’s 
Corporate 
Priorities/ 
Objectives: 

Fit for purpose, services fit for you 
Deliver customer focused services by maintaining and 
developing a well managed and publicly accountable 
organisation. 
 
 

Consultation: No public or partner consultations were required during 
the preparation of this report. 

Legal: There are no additional legal implications to those 
already contained in this report 

Financial: There are no additional financial implications to those 
already contained in this report. 

Human 
Resource: 

There are no additional human resource implications to 
those already contained in this report. 

Risk 
Management: 

There are no additional risk management implications to 
those already contained in this report. 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 43



    ESSENTIAL REFERENCE PAPER ‘B’ 
 
 

 Proposed meeting date 

Future of Standards Regime 
 

TO BE AGREED 

Review of Member/Officer 
Relations Protocol 
 

- 

Review of Members Planning 
Code of Good Practice 
 

- 

Bribery Act Policy 
 

- 

 
 

Page 44


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	6 Localism Bill
	7 Draft 2010/11 Annual Governance Statement
	Annual Governance Statement - ERP B

	8 Work Programme 2011/12

